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          1  COMMITTEE ON HIGHER EDUCATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: I just want to

          3  say good morning to everyone. It's a beautiful day.

          4  Everybody has good energy. Don't think that this

          5  budget process is wearing us down. We are still

          6  ripping and raring to go. Nobody is worn out, right,

          7  Gale? Gale is exhausted but not worn out. We will

          8  not be defeated, for people united will never be

          9  defeated.

         10                 My name is Charles Barron, Chair of

         11  the Higher Ed Committee. I want to welcome you to

         12  our hearing on undocumented students, as it relates

         13  to their tuition. I want to thank my colleagues for

         14  coming out during a very, very busy schedule around

         15  the budget hearing, Council Member Margarita Lopez,

         16  Council Member Miguel Martinez and Council Member

         17  Gale Brewer and myself constitute a quorum. We will

         18  be voting today on the resolution to make sure that

         19  we put enough influence on the state to pass a

         20  resolution to help our undocumented students.

         21                 I wanted to read my opening statement

         22  and then we'll begin with our testimony. There are

         23  testimonies from those who have come today to

         24  testify, and after taking one or two testimonies,

         25  then we're going to vote on the resolution and
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          2  continue our hearing from there.

          3                 Maritza. I want to thank my lawyer

          4  and comrade in struggle.

          5                 Good morning. I'd like to welcome

          6  you, everyone, to the hearing of the Higher

          7  Education Committee on undocumented students. I've

          8  welcomed my colleagues already, I want to thank them

          9  so much for joining me.

         10                 The purpose of today's hearing is to

         11  discuss CUNY's changing tuition policy which charges

         12  non-resident tuition rates to undocumented immigrant

         13  students who prior to January of 2002 have been

         14  charged residents tuition rates.

         15                 This change in tuition policy

         16  occurred in November of 2001, following the tragic

         17  events of September 11th. Today the members of the

         18  Committee will vote on Resolution 67, which calls

         19  upon the New York State Legislature to adopt

         20  Assembly Bill A.9556, so that state education law

         21  would be amended to require that CUNY charge the

         22  resident in-state student rate for tuition to

         23  undocumented out-of-status immigrant students who

         24  attend a secondary or high school in this state and

         25  received their high school diploma in this state, or
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          2  immigrant students who obtained the GED, General

          3  Education Diploma, issued by the State of New York.

          4                 The members of the Higher Education

          5  Committee are particularly concerned with the

          6  potential effect on immigrant CUNY students of this

          7  change in tuition policy. We know that Chancellor

          8  Goldstein is also concerned about the effects of

          9  this increase in tuition on the hard-working

         10  immigrant students.

         11                 It is estimated that approximately

         12  3,000 undocumented immigrant students currently

         13  attend our City and State public universities, CUNY

         14  and SUNY. However, the majority of these students,

         15  roughly 2,800, attend CUNY.

         16                 During 1998 and '99 academic year,

         17  the City University of New York conferred almost

         18  29,000 degrees ranging from certificates to

         19  doctorates, with an enrollment of approximately

         20  200,000 students in degree programs throughout the

         21  five boroughs of New York City.

         22                 CUNY also enrolls 150,000 students

         23  and adults in continuing education courses.

         24                 We also know that after graduation, a

         25  large percentage of CUNY alumni stay in New York
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          2  City and contribute to this City's economy in many

          3  substantial ways.

          4                 Most, if not all, of the affected

          5  CUNY students are of lower and middle-income

          6  backgrounds, as well as being of diverse, ethnic and

          7  racial background. Although at one time all CUNY

          8  students who were bonafide residents of New York

          9  were beneficiaries of a tuition free policy, that

         10  policy was changed in 1976.

         11                 In 1976, resident and non-resident

         12  tuition rates were established. Since 1989,

         13  undocumented immigrant students have been charged

         14  the resident rate of tuition. If they resided in

         15  this state for 12 months or had attended a New York

         16  City high school for the previous two semesters

         17  prior to enrollment in CUNY, this tuition policy

         18  remains in place until November of 2001.

         19                 This change in tuition policy has

         20  resulted in substantially increasing the cost of

         21  obtaining a CUNY education and diploma for

         22  undocumented and out-of-status immigrant students.

         23                 Currently, CUNY's tuition charges for

         24  full-time undergraduate study at the community

         25  colleges are $1,250 per semester for residents and
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          2  $1,538 for non-residents per semester.

          3                 At the senior colleges the tuition

          4  rates charges for full-time undergraduate study

          5  $1,600 per semester for residents, and $3,400 for

          6  non-residents per semester.

          7                 The lower resident rate of tuition is

          8  crucial of these particular students' ability to

          9  stay in school and graduate with CUNY degrees.

         10                 This Committee and its Chair believe

         11  that although these are difficult times, CUNY's

         12  educational mission of access and excellence for all

         13  New Yorkers of diverse races and ethnic background

         14  must not be jeopardized.

         15                 For those of you who are testifying

         16  today, even if you've responded to our office, we

         17  ask that you fill out the forms with the

         18  Sergeant-At-Arms so that you can appear, and I thank

         19  you very much.

         20                 I want to add also, that in 1996,

         21  when the federal law, the Immigrant, Illegal

         22  Immigration Reform and Immigrant Responsibility Act

         23  occurred, it was so vague that it gave us some

         24  wiggle room not to have to comply with it until they

         25  forwarded some recommendations for the
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          2  implementation of it. So, we did have wiggle room to

          3  wiggle out of it, and allow for the State

          4  Legislature to do what they had to do so these

          5  students are not harmed.

          6                 I also want to add that we want to

          7  thank the Chancellor for extending the opportunity

          8  for students to handle this situation. I think the

          9  deadline was supposed to be today. This was supposed

         10  to be the final day for them getting in all their

         11  tuition, but the Chancellor did extend it to June

         12  30th, and we think that this has been very, very

         13  helpful for the students, and it gives the state a

         14  chance to do what it has to do, and the City Council

         15  a chance to do what it has to do, to rectify this

         16  situation. So, on behalf of the Committee, we want

         17  to thank the Chancellor for that extension.

         18                 And now we'll begin our hearing and

         19  start with our first person to testify.

         20                 MS. BOLANOS: Our first witness is

         21  Professor Bill Crain.

         22                 Good morning. Please raise your right

         23  hand.

         24                 Do you swear that the testimony

         25  you're about to give before this Committee is the
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          2  whole truth and to the best of your knowledge?

          3                 PROFESSOR CRAIN: Yes.

          4                 MS. BOLANOS: Okay. Please state your

          5  name and organization for the record.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 PROFESSOR CRAIN: My name is Bill

          8  Crain. I'm Professor of Psychology at the City

          9  College of New York, and I'm Director of CUNY Is Our

         10  Future, which is a coalition of grassroots

         11  organizations, immigrant groups, faculty and

         12  students who are a stronger City University and Open

         13  Admissions at the City University. We lobby for

         14  that.

         15                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         16  speak and to speak early. We do have commencement at

         17  the City College today.

         18                 And I want to congratulate you on

         19  your effort, on behalf of the undocumented students,

         20  as you know, and already remarked, Chair Barron,

         21  that the students are very dedicated and hard

         22  working as a group. They probably exemplify the

         23  Protestant ethic of our society more than any other

         24  students. Most came here with their parents when

         25  they were young, they've attended our high schools,
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          2  they are ineligible for TAP or federal aid. Unlike

          3  the other students, they are not eligible for any

          4  aid at all, so they've always paid the full tuition

          5  just to pay the in-state rate. They paid more than

          6  the other students. Because they're from very poor

          7  families, this meant -- and because of their jobs

          8  that they have to take, this meant that they spent

          9  many hours working at low-paying jobs. Students talk

         10  about for $4.00 an hour "I cut vegetables in a

         11  restaurant. I sweep floors. I work in the sweatshops

         12  in the Garment Center." They work through high

         13  school. Many students have told me they work til

         14  midnight, past midnight. They talk about other

         15  students who go to movies. They can't go to movies.

         16  One student said, "I wanted to go to join the Chess

         17  Club. I have no time to go to the Chess Club." These

         18  are students who made incredible sacrifices and now

         19  this new tuition policy is pricing them out. That's

         20  $3.00 an hour, $4.00 an hour, $5.00 an hour, there's

         21  no way you can afford $1,800 more per semester at

         22  the senior colleges. It's just a terrible situation.

         23                 This legislation will help, but I

         24  would point out that the River and Espada bills that

         25  are promoted by the Assembly members and the State
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          2  Senate respectively, would qualify all students who

          3  have a high school diploma, New York State high

          4  school diploma or a GED for in-state tuition.

          5                 Governor Pataki's negotiation that so

          6  far would add two years' high school attendance to

          7  that requirement, that would mean that a student who

          8  came as a junior, was brought by his parents as a

          9  junior, would not qualify for, you know, a

         10  15-year-old or 16-year-old who came over with

         11  parents, was brought over by the parents searching

         12  for a better life would not qualify for in-state

         13  tuition.

         14                 So, it's important, if we lobby for a

         15  bill, that we want the most inclusive bill possible,

         16  one that simply requires high school, New York State

         17  High School graduation or a GED. Not adding that

         18  extra two or three years of high school attendance.

         19  I think it's just not fair, if you think about the

         20  students' circumstances.

         21                 At some point, probably not -- I've

         22  been told it's not politically appropriate this

         23  time, or opportune at this time, but at some point I

         24  think we want some legislation that would -- this

         25  legislation is not going to solve the problem for
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          2  many students. If we get this legislation it's a big

          3  help, but it won't solve the problem for many

          4  students. At some point we want legislation that

          5  will help the older students, such as if they go to

          6  a community college or a senior college and take 30

          7  credits, prove that they're a serious student,

          8  demonstrate that they're a serious student, had to

          9  live here for a year and they're in good standing,

         10  then they should qualify for in-state tuition no

         11  matter what their age.

         12                 I think that would be in compliance

         13  with the federal immigration law of 1996, and it

         14  makes good sense.

         15                 I think that CUNY, I still would

         16  think CUNY ought to, for the time being, it's not

         17  part of what the resolution you're going to pass

         18  today but, CUNY really ought to suspend, they ought

         19  to really suspend their compliance with this law.

         20  This is an unfair, unjust law. If we believe that

         21  humans have a right to develop their minds and

         22  pursue their dreams, that they have a right, this is

         23  a universal right. These students are here, they're

         24  our kids, this federal legislation was passed in an

         25  anti-immigrant mood. It was wrongly passed, it was
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          2  in the wake of Oklahoma City when they thought it

          3  must be a terrorist from some Middle Eastern

          4  country, it turned out to be our own white

          5  terrorist, but in any case, it was a misguided law,

          6  it was a punitive law, and it is, most of all it's

          7  an unjust law because it does not give everyone the

          8  right to develop their personality. And it's just an

          9  awful law, and in the name of higher ethical

         10  standards, we ought to oppose it and CUNY ought to

         11  not go along with it.

         12                 And this issue that you raise, Mr.

         13  Barron, about implementation regulations is a very

         14  serious one.

         15                 Implementation right now is chaotic.

         16  I know lots of students who are wrongly paying

         17  in-state tuition, others who are not paying in-state

         18  tuition. Because without the implementation

         19  regulations you don't know if they applied for a

         20  green card two years ago but you're on a waiting

         21  list, four years or one year. I mean, there's no way

         22  of consistently implementing this without those

         23  implementation regulations, and it's right to wait

         24  for them. But it's in the name of the higher

         25  principles of justice, it's really important to
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          2  stand for this.

          3                 And, finally, CUNY's historic mission

          4  is opportunities for the poor and immigrants. That's

          5  our mission, that's why we were founded, that's why

          6  we're a great university, this is what gives us

          7  meaning to our lives, this is why we work so hard at

          8  this university, this is why we are truly the most

          9  American of all universities in the sense of

         10  representing what America really stands for, which

         11  is opportunity. We all know it falls short of that,

         12  but this is the most democratic institution, it's

         13  the reason I work, I love this institution, and we

         14  have betrayed our mission, and this will be a small

         15  step to start to correct this but we have to protect

         16  all students.

         17                 And, so, I hope you will consider the

         18  points I made. Thank you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: We want to thank

         20  you very much for your testimony.

         21                 Questions from my colleagues?

         22                 Thank you very much.

         23                 MS. BOLANOS: Our next witness is

         24  Miriam Kramer.

         25                 Good morning.
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          2                 Do you swear the testimony you're

          3  about to give before this Committee is the whole

          4  truth and to the best of your knowledge?

          5                 MS. KRAMER: I do.

          6                 MS. BOLANOS: Could you please state

          7  your name and organization for the record.

          8                 MS. KRAMER: My name is Miriam Kramer,

          9  and I direct the NYPIRG, the New York Public

         10  Interest Research Group's Higher Education Campaign.

         11                 Good morning, and thank you for this

         12  opportunity to testify. It's good to be back at City

         13  Hall, and thank you to CUNY, and also the City

         14  Council's efforts on this cause, and also just to

         15  know that the Chancellor at SUNY, Bob King, is also

         16  in support of a bill that will allow undocumented

         17  residents to be able to pay in-state tuition at SUNY

         18  as well.

         19                 And you know the story, essentially

         20  that residents of New York who are attending

         21  graduate high school, they deserve a quality and

         22  affordable higher education, and it is essential

         23  that the State Legislature and specifically Governor

         24  Pataki, come out and pass legislation that will

         25  allow these individuals to continue to pay in-state
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          2  tuition at CUNY and SUNY.

          3                 Higher education has been an

          4  invaluable tool for immigrants to achieve a higher

          5  social and economic standing in our society.

          6                 Today CUNY and SUNY are two of the

          7  most diverse institutions of higher learning in the

          8  United States. Raising tuition rates for non-citizen

          9  residents will not only precipitate a decline in

         10  diversity, but lead to net loss of revenue and hurt

         11  New York State tax revenues by denying residents the

         12  opportunity to obtain college degrees and higher

         13  paying jobs.

         14                 I'm not going to reiterate more or

         15  less the story. You know about 3,000 students are

         16  impacted at CUNY alone. At SUNY they estimate that

         17  there are several hundred students, although they

         18  don't really have a way to know how many of them are

         19  impacted, and we've already said that it's an $1,800

         20  per semester tuition increase, and as Professor

         21  Crain mentioned, these are individuals who don't

         22  receive any financial aid, you know, either from the

         23  federal or the state level.

         24                 In addition to this being -- in

         25  addition to having this law being that it would be
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          2  the right thing to do and it would be the moral

          3  thing to do, passing such a law will allow New York

          4  to be a national leader, like California and Texas,

          5  who have already passed this legislation, and

          6  perhaps be an influential model for other states

          7  like Minnesota, Utah, Washington, which are

          8  currently proposing to also pass such legislation.

          9                 And as you mentioned before, Council

         10  Member Barron, that today is an extremely

         11  appropriate day to be holding this hearing, because

         12  it was the day that the hardship deferral was to

         13  have run out for these individuals. Fortunately,

         14  CUNY has extended this deadline to June 30th, and I

         15  know that many students that I've already spoken to

         16  are extremely grateful for that.

         17                 But it doesn't mean that, but this

         18  even means further that we should continue to make

         19  sure that such legislation is passed, and, as you

         20  know, these students, if this state bill is not

         21  passed, will be forced to pay, and many of them will

         22  not be able to, they will have to drop out and

         23  they've already registered for the fall semester as

         24  well, I think in the hopes that they would be able

         25  to get this bill passed. And if the bill is not then
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          2  they won't be able to pay for their in-state tuition

          3  and enroll in the fall semester, which would cut

          4  many of their college careers off in the middle or

          5  at the end.

          6                 So, NYPIRG urges you to pass

          7  Resolution 67, as well as to continue to advocate

          8  for undocumented students. I've been up in Albany a

          9  lot for the past month and a half meeting with

         10  Senate Republicans who all seem very receptive to

         11  the idea, but all of them are waiting for the

         12  Governor to come out with his program bill. It's

         13  absolutely essential that the Governor comes out

         14  with his language. He's already said that he's in

         15  support of it but we haven't seen anything

         16  physically that indicates that he will actually be

         17  passing such a bill, and, so, I urge, you know, the

         18  Council members who are present to you, yourselves,

         19  write letters to call the Governor, to send him

         20  faxes, do whatever it takes for him to quickly put

         21  out his program bill, as well as to speak with the

         22  other Council members to do this as soon as

         23  possible, so these students are no longer in limbo

         24  and that they can sort of, you know, breathe a sigh

         25  of relief that they'll be able to continue their
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          2  higher education.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Well, thank you

          5  very much. And thank you for your continued support

          6  of CUNY students and the work that you've done with

          7  this Committee and with the campuses. We want to

          8  thank you for your contribution.

          9                 Council Member Lopez.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I have a couple

         11  of questions in order to clarify this issue a little

         12  further.

         13                 MS. KRAMER: Sure.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: To the best of

         15  your knowledge, the Governor, Pataki, has said

         16  publicly, verbally, that he's willing to support

         17  this idea.

         18                 MS. KRAMER: Correct.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: But in

         20  practice, can you tell me what he has done to move

         21  this issue forward and make it a reality?

         22                 MS. KRAMER: Thus far on practice I

         23  have not seen anything on paper. What he intends to

         24  do and what he says that he's going to do is put out

         25  a program bill, which as I'm sure you're familiar,
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          2  is a parallel bill to the bills that are already out

          3  in both the Senate and the Assembly, and from what

          4  I'm getting from the Senate, once that bill goes out

          5  to the Senate and the Assembly, they will adopt the

          6  bill and sponsor it and then get it passed through

          7  both houses, and the Governor will sign it.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I understand

          9  the procedure. But what I want to know is, in

         10  practical terms, the Governor has said verbally that

         11  he will support this, but in practice, in material

         12  waste, has he done anything that indicate that he's

         13  going to proceed to help the immigrant population

         14  that exists in this country since they were

         15  teenagers and that they are in the educational

         16  system right now? Has he done anything in terms of

         17  practical material action that you can tell me?

         18                 MS. KRAMER: In terms of this

         19  particular case I have not seen anything.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then the

         21  Governor has done nothing in practical terms.

         22                 MS. KRAMER: If you define practical

         23  terms as something more than verbal agreement to

         24  support the bill, then to the best of my knowledge,

         25  no.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            21

          1  COMMITTEE ON HIGHER EDUCATION

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Correct.

          3                 The second question. To the best of

          4  your knowledge, do you know all of the students that

          5  we're talking about, if they are dependent on the

          6  state? And if they are not, why they are not?

          7                 MS. KRAMER: Can you define better,

          8  what do you mean dependent?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I'm just trying

         10  to clarify that all of the students do not qualify

         11  for any benefits in this City or in this State and

         12  all of them have to work. That is correct?

         13                 MS. KRAMER: That is correct.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And what they

         15  do is to contribute to the economy of this City.

         16                 MS. KRAMER: I don't know that all of

         17  them do contribute to the economy in a monetary way,

         18  but I know that many of them with whom I've spoken,

         19  they do have work permits and they are paying taxes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: That is my

         21  point. They are paying taxes to the State of -- New

         22  York State, because they work, and due to the fact

         23  that they work, they contribute therefore to the

         24  economy of this City and this State.

         25                 MS. KRAMER: That is correct.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And in base of

          3  that now they are being told that a federal law is

          4  going to treat them in terms of taxpayers as a

          5  second class citizen.

          6                 MS. KRAMER: Correct.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I remember the

          8  last time that that was done to the citizens of this

          9  great state of ours and this nation of ours was a

         10  revolution.

         11                 Do you remember, Mr. Chairman, when

         12  some people said no taxation, no representation? And

         13  it's a lot of taxation for the students, but appear

         14  to be that they don't qualify for the benefit.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 MS. KRAMER: Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Yes, Council

         18  Member Martinez.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: How are you?

         20  Good morning.

         21                 Just for my information, my

         22  qualifications, you spoke with Senate republicans

         23  and they're waiting for the Governor to reduce his

         24  legislation?

         25                 MS. KRAMER: That's correct.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Does that

          3  mean that the current bill that the Espaillat,

          4  Rivera, Assembly, and Espada Senate bill, that's not

          5  what's going to be presented to the Governor? The

          6  Governor is presenting something different than

          7  what's already on the table?

          8                 MS. KRAMER: The Governor has seen

          9  both those bills and I know that he is --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: The Governor

         11  did what? I'm sorry?

         12                 MS. KRAMER: He's seen both of the

         13  current bills that are out, the Espaillat bill and

         14  the Rivera bill, which as you're familiar is

         15  somewhat different. And he's looking to, I think

         16  your program bill that's as comprehensive as

         17  possible, inclusive, I know he's looking

         18  specifically at a bill that will protect both

         19  students at SUNY and CUNY, and various other

         20  guidelines which he has not been very verbal about.

         21  But the bill that he will produce will be a

         22  combination of both those bills, but I don't know

         23  exactly what will be in it, but it will be a

         24  different bill.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: This

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            24

          1  COMMITTEE ON HIGHER EDUCATION

          2  particular resolution deals with CUNY, in

          3  particular, City University. I know that one of the

          4  bills, I think it's the Espaillat bill, includes

          5  SUNY, correct? Is that the factor that you've been

          6  stalling the Governor on this?

          7                 MS. KRAMER: No, I don't know what's

          8  stalling the Governor, but I know that in speaking

          9  with some of his senior staff members, they are

         10  interested in putting out a bill that will include

         11  both SUNY and CUNY.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Okay, thank

         13  you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Thank you very

         15  much. We sure appreciate that testimony.

         16                 MS. KRAMER: Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: What I'd like to

         18  do now, Council Member Gennaro, is he around?

         19                 Okay, what I want to do is take a

         20  moment, because some of my colleagues have some

         21  pressing engagements and things that they have to do

         22  and I want to make sure that we have a quorum, to

         23  make sure we get the vote in.

         24                 So, I'm going to wait for a moment.

         25  As a matter of fact, we'll continue with the
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          2  testimony, but we'll wait for Jim Gennaro to come so

          3  we can get the vote in and make sure at least we

          4  have a quorum, and then we'll hear from the

          5  Administration, and we don't have many more to

          6  testify.

          7                 But I think the points that have been

          8  made thus far are extremely important, particularly

          9  with what my colleague, Margarita Lopez, was making

         10  on the contribution, and when you hear the term

         11  "undocumented" and it used to be even worse,

         12  "illegal alien," space people came into town, but

         13  now, you know, at least they're trying to correct

         14  some of the language, but you don't get a sense of

         15  the contribution that is made, not only financially,

         16  but even culturally and politically and socially and

         17  in so many different ways that you don't get a real

         18  true sense of the people that we're talking about

         19  here and the contributions that they have made.

         20                 So, I want to thank my colleague

         21  Margarita Lopez for adding that on. And the fact the

         22  timing of the 1996 policy after Oklahoma, and the

         23  timing of the implementing of this after September

         24  11th here in New York City raises real concerns by

         25  this Committee and this Chair on what's really going
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          2  on here.

          3                 So, I just want to let you know that

          4  this is a very, very historic moment, very important

          5  moment for us that we get this kind of protection

          6  for all the students of CUNY, but particularly these

          7  class of students that are under this kind of

          8  attack.

          9                 The legislation in the state, my

         10  lawyer tells me that, Pataki, and this is for you,

         11  Council Member Martinez, may have presented some of

         12  that, the bill to Espada may be the same bill that

         13  he'll be putting forward, so it may not be any

         14  changing in that bill, and, hopefully, it is the

         15  same bill so that he doesn't alter it or change

         16  anything in it. And the key to this resolution that

         17  we are going to pass today that I'm optimistic

         18  about, is that the undocumented students we

         19  recognize as in-state students because they have

         20  high school diplomas from legitimate state, city

         21  institutions, or GED, General Equivalency Diplomas

         22  from legitimate institutions. So, that's the thrust

         23  of the bill and that will put them in compliance

         24  with the 1996 federal act.

         25                 So, that's what we're working on now.
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          2                 And we have Council Member Jim

          3  Gennaro joining us, and he's running. Now if I can

          4  get my lawyer back. You can do this, right?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Mr. Chair,

          6  you don't move without a lawyer, huh?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Don't move

          8  without a lawyer.

          9                 Anybody here legaled up?

         10                 We thank you for your patience, and

         11  as we prepare to take a vote, I want to welcome to

         12  the Chambers and to this hearing of the Committee on

         13  Higher Education, my name is Council Member Charles

         14  Barron, I chair the Committee on Higher Education,

         15  this is Council Member Margarita Lopez and this is

         16  our lawyer Martiza, and this is Council Member

         17  Miguel Martinez, and Council Member Gale Brewer, and

         18  Council Member Jim Gennaro, who all of you know, I

         19  want to welcome the United Nations International

         20  School. Give them a handclap, they're here joining

         21  us today. Thank you. And their teacher, Theresa Leo,

         22  are you here? Yes. We thank you for bringing them.

         23  And you'd be very proud of Jim, he does good work.

         24  We've got him on his best behavior today because

         25  you're here. He usually doesn't sit this quietly and
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          2  fold his hands, but he's putting on a front for you,

          3  but he's a great Councilman. So, you have a very

          4  great Councilman whose representing your district

          5  and he's surely done a lot and a professor in his

          6  own right and he's just a great, great human being

          7  and hard worker for the City Council.

          8                 So, Jim, thank you very much for

          9  bringing them.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you,

         11  Mr. Chairman. Thank you for your gracious remarks. I

         12  do appreciate it very much. And I did see you folks

         13  out in the hall and it's great that you came here.

         14  As a matter of fact, the UN school is only a couple

         15  of blocks from my house, and, so, it's a real treat

         16  to have you folks here today. And thank you, Mr.

         17  Chairman. And you get to see a vote of the Committee

         18  which is a great thing. Maybe the Chairman could

         19  tell a little bit about what we're voting on.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Thank you very

         21  much.

         22                 What we're voting on now, and CUNY,

         23  there's about 200,000 CUNY students, and that's the

         24  City University of New York, that's higher

         25  education, colleges that are public colleges for the
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          2  City University. We're taking a vote that's going to

          3  impact 3,000 of those students or approximately

          4  2,800 in CUNY and another 200 in SUNY, which is the

          5  State Colleges. Some students come from other

          6  countries and not fully documented with all their

          7  paperwork on citizenship, but they do pay taxes and

          8  contribute to the City and to its economy and to its

          9  culture and to all of the good things that the City

         10  does, these students contribute to it. It would be a

         11  great hardship on these students if they had to pay

         12  what we call out-of-state tuition, which would be

         13  for the senior colleges $3,400.  If they are treated

         14  as in-state students, they only pay $1,600. So, we

         15  think because they work so hard and contribute so

         16  much to this City, we want to pass a resolution that

         17  allows them to pay the $1,600 instead of the $3,400

         18  when they're treated as out-of-state students.

         19                 So, that's what this resolution will

         20  do, and then we'll take this and send it to the

         21  State of New York and tell them to change the

         22  education law that will allow their high school

         23  diploma to be sufficient, good enough for them to be

         24  treated as in-state students. That's the resolution

         25  which our lawyer will read, so that you can get an
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          2  understanding of it as she reads it and then we'll

          3  take a vote on it.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Mr. Chairman?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Yes?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Can I ask a

          8  question of those children?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Sure.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: How many of you

         11  are girls in there? Can you stand up, the girls?

         12  Girls rule. I like that.

         13                 And how many are boys? Ahh, you are

         14  the minority.

         15                 How many of you are Asian? One, two,

         16  all right, three, four. Okay, and how many of you

         17  are African-American? One, two, three, four, five,

         18  six.

         19                 How many of you are Latinos? No

         20  Latinos in the group. Well, it's a very diverse

         21  group, I'm very impressed. But remember, girls rule.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Young men, that

         23  is just one opinion from one of the City Council

         24  members. Men, the boys, we have something to say to

         25  this, too; isn't that right? All right. We'll work
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          2  together.

          3                 Okay, what we're going to do is read

          4  the introduction of the resolution and the summary

          5  of the resolution and then we'll take our vote.

          6  Thank you very much.

          7                 Excuse me. I just want to welcome

          8  Council Member Bill Perkins, who is the Deputy

          9  Majority Leader and a former member of this

         10  Committee, prior to some of us here. Thank you very

         11  much.

         12                 MS. BOLANOS: Resolution Number 67.

         13  Resolution calling upon the New York State

         14  Legislature to adopt Assembly Bill A.9556, which

         15  amends Section 6206 of the Education Law, in

         16  relation to requiring that the Board of Trustees of

         17  the City of New York charge the same rate of tuition

         18  that is charged to state residents to any person who

         19  is an immigrant alien who attended a secondary or

         20  high school in the state and received a high school

         21  diploma within the state, or who obtained a general

         22  education diploma issued within the state.

         23                 The Resolution cites the important

         24  role that immigrants have played throughout the

         25  history of CUNY and in the building of the workforce
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          2  of the City and state, as well as the nation's

          3  democratic institutions.

          4                 This Resolution emphasizes that many

          5  hard-working undocumented immigrants who have

          6  attended elementary and secondary schools in this

          7  City and state and who are likely to remain in this

          8  state, are now precluded from obtaining an

          9  affordable college education, due to non-resident

         10  tuition rates, and CUNY's recent change in tuition

         11  policy adversely and disproportionately impacts

         12  ethnic minorities and students of color. The

         13  resolution cites the need for the enactment of the

         14  Assembly bill in order to remedy unmitigated

         15  injustices caused by the Immigration Act of 1996,

         16  which fails to adequately provide for alien

         17  immigrant students, expeditious resolution of their

         18  legal status due to the immigration and

         19  naturalization services backlog of over 800,000

         20  applications for resident alien status.

         21                 This resolution declares that since

         22  CUNY has stated that it is constrained to comply

         23  with the Immigration Act of 1996, enactment of this

         24  Assembly Bill A.9556, would ensure a fair tuition

         25  policy and uphold the intention of the New York
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          2  State Education Law, Section 6201, by providing for

          3  equal access and opportunity for students from all

          4  ethnic and racial groups.

          5                 This resolution concludes that the

          6  Assembly Bill furthers the spirit of this City and

          7  state's longstanding tradition of fairness and

          8  opportunity to all students who are willing to work

          9  hard, obtain greater knowledge and training through

         10  higher education, and thus contribute to the state's

         11  economy.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Roll call.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Barron.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Aye.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: Lopez.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Permission to

         17  explain my vote?

         18                 I am not a sponsor of this piece of

         19  legislation. I was waiting for this particular

         20  hearing to take place in order to listen to the

         21  arguments presenting forward. I understand that we

         22  are in economic crisis, and I understand that that

         23  economic crisis create many problems. But when a law

         24  is unfair, a law is challenging justice and

         25  equality. And when a law is challenging justice and
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          2  equality, the question of economic hardship has to

          3  be set aside, and we need to look into the question

          4  of what we are here for, and we are here to create

          5  laws that benefit those who contribute to the

          6  society in which they operate or we are here to

          7  chastise them and set them aside.

          8                 I vote aye on this bill, and I

          9  believe that implementing the law to charge the

         10  students more money than another is illegal, it's

         11  unjust, and it's immoral.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Perkins.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: If I just may

         15  take a moment to explain my vote.

         16                 As a sponsor of this vote I want to

         17  commend Council Member Martinez for leadership that

         18  he has provided in spearheading this effort and our

         19  colleagues in the Assembly that have also been

         20  trying to rectify this injustice as it applies to

         21  our City University system, an injustice that

         22  unfortunately also has a tendency to be

         23  disproportionately impacting immigrants of color,

         24  and if there's one thing we cannot tolerate in this

         25  City is public policies that have a racist impact,
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          2  especially on students, especially on our young.

          3  Thank you very much. I vote aye.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I vote aye. I,

          5  too, am a sponsor. I want to congratulate Council

          6  Member Martinez and Chairman Barron for pushing the

          7  legislation, and those in Albany, and I also want to

          8  congratulate the advocates who keep us informed and

          9  do it in a very professional manner, working with

         10  the students, and really taking a leadership,

         11  providing information to us. And also I want to

         12  thank CUNY, because I think I know that they would

         13  like to be as helpful as possible, and they care

         14  about the students as much as anybody else. I vote

         15  aye.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gennaro.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: I'd just like

         18  to take a moment, Mr. Chair, and just explain my

         19  vote.

         20                 This is a proud day for me, as

         21  someone who teaches at CUNY, I was at a CUNY

         22  graduation yesterday, and Queens College where I

         23  teach, and on behalf of all of my current students

         24  and former students and future students, I proudly

         25  vote aye.
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          2                 Thank you for your leadership, Mr.

          3  Chairman.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Martinez.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: A moment to

          6  explain my vote, Mr. Chair?

          7                 I want to thank you for the support

          8  and the assistance in making sure that we make this

          9  possible as soon as possible, knowing the importance

         10  and the impact that it's going to have on many of

         11  our communities, in many cases where we have first

         12  generation going into the universities.

         13                 But I also want to thank the

         14  Chancellor for his leadership and his commitment.

         15  Just today he proved again, because one of my

         16  essential points was that we need to ensure that the

         17  open door policies remain open to everyone,

         18  regardless of their legal status at CUNY, and I

         19  think that today he proved once more that he is

         20  committed to ensuring that the doors remain open by

         21  expanding the deadline. I want to commend them for

         22  that. He's proven to be an ally of all communities

         23  that attend CUNY, and, again, I want to thank my

         24  fellow Council members at the Committee for their

         25  support and signing onto the intro, the bill.
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          2                 I proudly vote aye, and we're leading

          3  by example, and now we're going to take our message

          4  to Albany loud and clear. This is an election year,

          5  the Governor wants our support, especially the

          6  minority communities, so he needs to show leadership

          7  and also show support for those thousands of CUNY

          8  students.

          9                 I proudly vote aye on that.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of six in

         11  the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

         12  abstentions, the item is adopted. Please sign the

         13  Committee report.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: We want to thank

         15  you very much. And I also want to take a moment to

         16  commend Council Member Miguel Martinez, who is lead

         17  sponsor of this resolution and for his diligency,

         18  his tenacity, his boldness, to continue to fight for

         19  the rights of immigrant students and for all

         20  students, and students of color and all students who

         21  deserve access to higher education.

         22                 I want to thank the Committee for

         23  taking out the time, and we want to continue our

         24  testimony, continue our hearing, we have two more

         25  testimonies and that will conclude our testimony
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          2  hearing for the day.

          3                 So, we want to call up the next

          4  person to testify.

          5                 MS. BOLANOS: Our next witness is Vice

          6  Chancellor Otis Hill, and General Counsel to CUNY,

          7  Frederick Schaffer.

          8                 Please raise your right hands.

          9                 Do you each independently swear that

         10  the testimony you're about to provide before this

         11  Committee is the whole truth and to the best of your

         12  knowledge?

         13                 MR. SCHAFFER: I do.

         14                 VICE CHANCELLOR HILL: Yes.

         15                 MS. BOLANOS: Please state your name

         16  and organization before you begin your testimony for

         17  the record. Thank you.

         18                 VICE CHANCELLOR HILL: Otis Hill, Vice

         19  Chancellor for Student Development and Enrollment

         20  Management, City University.

         21                 VICE CHANCELLOR SCHAFFER: Frederick

         22  Schaffer, General Counsel and Vice Chancellor for

         23  Legal Affairs, City University.

         24                 VICE CHANCELLOR HILL: Mr. Chairman,

         25  we appreciate the opportunity to testify on behalf
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          2  of Chancellor Matthew Goldstein and the University

          3  in its support of the principles inherent in

          4  Resolution Number 67, relating to Assembly Bill

          5  A.9556. This bill before the State Legislature

          6  obliges the University to charge the same rate of

          7  tuition to students affected by recent changes in

          8  policy related to undocumented immigrants.

          9                 I would like to take this opportunity

         10  to commend the City Council, members of the

         11  Committee and its chair, as well as Council Member

         12  Martinez, for proposing this resolution.

         13                 In early January, Chancellor

         14  Goldstein wrote to Assemblyman Peter Rivera and

         15  other legislators indicating his support for the

         16  principles and remedy inherent in this important

         17  legislation.

         18                 The Chancellor and the University, in

         19  conjunction of the Office of the Governor,

         20  Assemblyman Espaillat and Rivera and Senator Espada,

         21  have been working to change state law to allow

         22  immigrant students who attend and graduated from New

         23  York State high schools to be charged the resident

         24  tuition rate.

         25                 On a national level, California and
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          2  Texas enacted similar legislation affecting

          3  immigrant students. It is time for New York State to

          4  exercise similar leadership.

          5                 The changes in state legislation will

          6  ameliorate the plight of immigrant students at CUNY

          7  who are seeking educational opportunity and

          8  advancement. Chairman Barron and members of the

          9  Committee, the University remains deeply committed

         10  to maintaining its proud tradition of welcoming and

         11  educating all immigrants.

         12                 That tradition was forged over many

         13  generations and has reflected in the extraordinary

         14  diversity of our student body.

         15                 It is appropriate today that the

         16  students from the UN school be present and hear that

         17  we wholeheartedly support Resolution 67 before this

         18  Committee today, and will continue working with you

         19  to assure the passage of legislation.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Thank you very

         22  much. I would like for you to send a message to the

         23  Chancellor on behalf of this Committee, and thanking

         24  him for the extension that was so sorely needed and

         25  for the understanding and sensitivity that he has

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            41

          1  COMMITTEE ON HIGHER EDUCATION

          2  shown to this particular issue, and I'm certain that

          3  both of us, the Council and the Chancellor's Office

          4  and the CUNY students will be victorious on this

          5  particular issue and it's good that we're uniting as

          6  a team. And I think it is also appropriate that you

          7  mentioned the United Nations school, because indeed,

          8  the CUNY system is a reflection of the United

          9  Nations, people from all over the world go to CUNY,

         10  and people from all over the world go to the United

         11  Nations, so I think this is a most appropriate visit

         12  by the school and the passing of this resolution.

         13                 Any questions of my colleagues?

         14                 We thank you very much.

         15                 VICE CHANCELLOR HILL: Thank you.

         16                 MS. BOLANOS: Our next witness is

         17  Professor Robert Smith.

         18                 Good morning.

         19                 PROFESSOR SMITH: Good morning.

         20                 MS. BOLANOS: Thank you for your

         21  patience. We welcome you.

         22                 Please raise your right hand.

         23                 Do you swear that the testimony

         24  you're about to give before this Committee is the

         25  whole truth and to the best of your knowledge?
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          2                 PROFESSOR SMITH: I do.

          3                 MS. BOLANOS: State your name and

          4  organization for the record. Thank you.

          5                 PROFESSOR SMITH: My name is Robert

          6  Smith. I'm a Sociology Professor at Barnard College.

          7                 For the record, I'm also a former

          8  CUNY Professor. I didn't leave, though, I was budget

          9  cutted in 1995. So, just so everyone knows.

         10                 I greatly appreciate the chance to

         11  testify today, and I also applaud your leadership in

         12  pushing Resolution 67, having repeated hearings on

         13  this issue.

         14                 It's an important issue, and you're

         15  not going to get many votes out of the 3,000

         16  undocumented students. I know that's not your cause,

         17  but I just say as a politician it shows a moral

         18  commitment that I share in which I applaud.

         19                 I would strongly urge this bill to be

         20  passed for a variety of reasons, and to make the

         21  bill that they ultimately pass the most inclusive

         22  bill possible, for reasons I'll outline.

         23                 I would say one thing about the way

         24  New York State is or is not taking leadership. I

         25  think in some cases actually New York State finds
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          2  itself in the embarrassing position of being behind

          3  the state that passed proposition 187, California.

          4  The state that tried to deny all but emergency

          5  services to undocumented immigrant has a much better

          6  bill in place than New York State does, and for the

          7  immigrant's state and the great and beloved state of

          8  New York, I think this is not the way things should

          9  be.

         10                 There are several reasons why I think

         11  this bill should be passed. One is that, as Bill

         12  pointed out before, many of these students came when

         13  they were quite young, and have lived here their

         14  entire lives and really don't know anything, any

         15  other experience besides being in New York.

         16                 For the more recent immigrants I ask

         17  the following question: Here are people who work,

         18  get no federal aid, get no government aid, work

         19  full-time jobs in order to pay for their way so they

         20  can advance, but does New York State really want to

         21  turn potential teachers, social workers and doctors

         22  into life-long dishwashers? I don't think so. I

         23  think New York should be in the business of doing

         24  the reverse.

         25                 There are several other things, more
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          2  concrete things that I related to my own research

          3  that I would like to talk about. For the last five

          4  years I've been working on the education of Mexican

          5  and Mexican-American students. The research I've

          6  been doing has been funded by the National Science

          7  Foundation and the National Academy of Education,

          8  the Social Science Research Council, and the oral

          9  history project at Columbia, as well as other

         10  places.

         11                 One of the things that I have found

         12  has been that the educational aspirations of

         13  undocumented, documented and U.S. immigrants, a U.S.

         14  citizen, Mexican-American students that I have been

         15  working with have been squashed by a number of

         16  things, one of which is the widespread belief that

         17  undocumented people cannot attend college at all,

         18  that they are legally prohibited from doing this.

         19  And, in fact, I worked with the CUNY Administration

         20  last summer doing outreach to change this

         21  perception, what ends up happening is that people

         22  believe that college is not for Mexicans, and, so,

         23  the undocumented and the documented student, and

         24  many of their US citizen friends end up lowering

         25  their aspirations and act on this belief. College is
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          2  not for us, so we don't graduate from high school,

          3  we just go out and work.

          4                 Conversely, I've also found among

          5  groups of documented, undocumented and US citizen

          6  children, who believe, who know that they can go to

          7  college even though they're undocumented, that

          8  having this knowledge has in fact increased their

          9  educational aspirations and their educational

         10  attainment. So there are really concrete benefits

         11  and costs in terms of the education of our youth

         12  that need to be discussed here.

         13                 I'll give you one example. I followed

         14  a young man for a number of years in my research who

         15  came in as a freshman, a U.S. citizen,

         16  Mexican-American, came in as a freshman to high

         17  school as an honor student and ended up dropping out

         18  in his second year of sophomore year. And in part it

         19  was because his friend said don't be a fool,

         20  Mexicans don't go to college, his documented,

         21  undocumented and U.S. citizen friends.

         22                 I think having a policy where

         23  everybody has the chance to go to college and where

         24  everybody knows this would make a big difference. It

         25  won't save everybody but it will make a big
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          2  difference.

          3                 And before this whole policy change,

          4  CUNY was working very hard to help accomplish that

          5  mission and I hope that once this bill gets passed,

          6  I can go back to working with them to accomplish

          7  that very important work.

          8                 A second thing is that this bill

          9  would rectify the current situation which makes no

         10  economic sense. The long-term cost to the City, the

         11  state and the country of these 3,000 students is

         12  tremendous, and I think there is probably more than

         13  3,000 students.

         14                 I estimated that over the course of a

         15  40-year working lifetime, using 1992 dollars, each

         16  of these students will contribute $230,000 less in

         17  taxes, which makes $690 million less in taxes using

         18  1992 dollars, using 2000 dollars, that's more than a

         19  billion dollars less in taxes over the 40-year

         20  working lifetimes of these 3,000 students.

         21                 Now, I don't know about -- I mean, I

         22  don't know anybody who manages a budget who couldn't

         23  use an extra billion dollars over the next 40 years.

         24                 And the part about it that's the most

         25  horribly ironic, is there's no outlay required by
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          2  New York State, New York City or the federal

          3  government. We are basically throwing a billion

          4  dollars in tax money away.

          5                 Not that this is the most important

          6  thing, but it certainly is a compelling thing.

          7                 Let me also backtrack one second. I

          8  point out the effects specifically on U.S. citizen

          9  children, not because I think that they're worth

         10  more, but because I know that this matters in terms

         11  of federal legislation, in terms of immigration laws

         12  and things like that. The impact on U.S. citizen

         13  children in some circles weighs more, although not

         14  in my moral calculus.

         15                 A final thing that I would like to

         16  say, there's two final things, and I'm sorry that

         17  Council Member Lopez has left, one of the things is

         18  the 1996 law which precipitated this entire set of

         19  events, the latter half of the law is the

         20  individual, the Immigrant Responsibility Act. I

         21  cannot imagine of a more strong embodiment of a

         22  personal work ethic and an individual responsibility

         23  than people who work long hours at miserable wages

         24  for the chance to go to school, because they want to

         25  get ahead.
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          2                 I wonder how many of the legislators

          3  who voted, in addition, who graduate from the New

          4  York City public school system in schools where

          5  two-thirds of the entering freshmen in many of those

          6  high schools don't graduate.

          7                 So, they're already in the top third

          8  of the class, then they actually go to college which

          9  puts them probably in the top 15 percent of their

         10  entering class, and we're stepping on the heads of

         11  people who are really embodying, that carry the

         12  American dream.

         13                 There's two other short points I'd

         14  like to make. One is that the raise in tuition now

         15  means that instead of having to work full time for

         16  six weeks during the semester to pay for your

         17  tuition, you now have to work 17 weeks full-time

         18  during a 15-week semester to pay for your tuition,

         19  working at the average wages of undocumented

         20  workers, five bucks an hour.

         21                 The last thing. Council Member Lopez

         22  brought up the point that undocumented students do

         23  pay taxes. She said because they work. They pay

         24  employment taxes very often, even though many people

         25  think that they don't, taxes are usually taken out
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          2  of their paychecks. I mean, in many cases not, but

          3  in many cases they are. They pay sales tax like

          4  everybody else, and they pay other kinds of local

          5  taxes.

          6                 Now, there is a sort of group of

          7  people led by Senator Frank Padavan in the State

          8  Senate -- Senator Padavan had a report before saying

          9  that immigrants pay less in taxes to municipalities

         10  than they get back in services, and this is true,

         11  and so does Mr. Padavan, and so do all the

         12  legislators and senators sitting and so do every one

         13  of us sitting here. This is a problem of federalism,

         14  because what happens is most people pay taxes, you

         15  pay the disproportionate amount of taxes into the

         16  federal government, and then the delivery of

         17  services is done by municipalities.

         18                 There was in fact a study done by the

         19  Rand Corporation, and the study was reinforced by a

         20  study by the National Academy of Sciences, which

         21  said that undocumented people on balance pay

         22  slightly more into the national coffers than they

         23  take out, that there is a net, a modest net

         24  contribution contrary to the sort of inflammatory

         25  rhetoric of Senator Padavan and others.
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          2                 The final thing I would say, just to

          3  have this on the record, and I remember you joked

          4  last time, Councilman Barron, when academics say the

          5  final thing they're going to say, it doesn't mean

          6  that, because I said that twice already, but this is

          7  the final thing, which is that I think if I was

          8  going to make a modification to the law, I would

          9  just remove all references to residency, to how long

         10  someone has been here. That's the issue that got us

         11  into trouble in the first place. Having a law that

         12  says anyone who attended a New York high school and

         13  graduated or got a GED meets the requirements of the

         14  federal law and tacking on a two or three-year

         15  residency, as the Texas law did, doesn't make any

         16  sense. It's not required by the federal law, and, in

         17  fact, could be a basis for challenging the law by

         18  someone interested to do so.

         19                 I greatly appreciate the chance to

         20  testify today.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: We appreciate

         22  your testimony, and if you could, I don't know how

         23  much of that is written up, but if you can get that

         24  to my office, I would really appreciate it.

         25                 Thank you very much.
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          2                 PROFESSOR SMITH: You're very welcome.

          3                 MS. BOLANOS: Okay, our next witness

          4  is Karen Dodson.

          5                 Please raise your right hand.

          6                 Do you swear that the testimony

          7  you're about to provide before this Committee is the

          8  whole truth and to the best of your knowledge?

          9                 MS. DODSON: I do.

         10                 MS. BOLANOS: I didn't hear you.

         11                 MS. DODSON: I do.

         12                 MS. BOLANOS: Okay. Please state your

         13  name and organization for the record.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 MS. DODSON: Karen Dodson, I represent

         16  University Student Senate.

         17                 First of all, I'd like to apologize

         18  for our Chairperson, Richard Nunez-Lawrence. He had

         19  to give greetings at the commencement for Lehman

         20  College, so he won't be here today.

         21                 He's given me a letter, actually to

         22  hand out to the Council, as well, at the end.

         23                 First of all he says, "Thank you for

         24  giving me the opportunity yet again to give

         25  testimony in sustaining the fundamental standards of

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            52

          1  COMMITTEE ON HIGHER EDUCATION

          2  our University.

          3                 On behalf of the students in CUNY, I

          4  would like to thank publicly Council Members

          5  Martinez, Baez, Perkins, Reyna, Rodriguez, Serrano,

          6  Vann, Felder, Monserrate, Seabrook, Stewart and

          7  Clarke. I want to give a special thanks to Council

          8  Member Brewer, Rivera and Chairman Barron to your

          9  overwhelming dedication and support for City

         10  University.

         11                 On the matter concerning Council

         12  Resolution Number 67, the University Student Senate

         13  emphatically supports requiring immigrants

         14  regardless of status to pay the same rate of tuition

         15  as state residents and citizens of New York.

         16                 Our position is based on many

         17  factors; however, the main factor is that immigrants

         18  add to the culture richness of our City. The City

         19  University was founded on the principle of educating

         20  all who would wish to attend the institution. Above

         21  all, the very premise of going against such

         22  principles would go against the notion of CUNY as

         23  the integrated university.

         24                 In fact, to quote a passage on a CUNY

         25  web site, Education and Acculturation of Immigrants:
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          2  CUNY students speak 160 native languages

          3  collectively. CUNY has always taken a leading role

          4  in providing for the acculturation of immigrants in

          5  New York.

          6                 Language immersion programs and

          7  citizenship training are just two examples of

          8  services available today within the system.

          9                 Given the results of the 2000 Census

         10  and CUNY's own census data service at the Graduate

         11  School's Center for Urban Research, directed by

         12  Professor John Mollenkopf, which provides widely

         13  respected and analytic research on census-related

         14  issues, CUNY is poised to make increasing

         15  contributions to the education of newcomers to New

         16  York.

         17                 It is clear though this passage that

         18  any opposition to allowing immigrants to pay the

         19  same rate of tuition as in-state residents of New

         20  York would be in strict contradiction to the mission

         21  of the City University, as well as being a threat

         22  tot he fabric of New York City.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: We thank you very

         25  much for your testimony. And just for your
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          2  information, Resolution 67 did unanimously pass

          3  today and we'll be sending information to the state

          4  and letting them know that, and then the resolution

          5  will go before the full Council, and we're very

          6  optimistic that it's going to get full Council

          7  support.

          8                 Thank you for your testimony.

          9                 MS. DODSON: Thank you.

         10                 MS. BOLANOS: Our next witness is

         11  Susan O'Malley.

         12                 Please raise your right hand. Do you

         13  swear that the testimony you're about to provide

         14  before this Committee is the whole truth and to the

         15  best of your knowledge?

         16                 DR. O'MALLEY: Yes.

         17                 MS. BOLANOS: Just make sure the

         18  button on your microphone is on. It looks like it's

         19  off.

         20                 DR. O'MALLEY: Now it's on.

         21                 MS. BOLANOS: Okay.

         22                 DR. O'MALLEY: But if you passed it, I

         23  don't really need to say anything.

         24                 MS. BOLANOS: Please state your name.

         25                 DR. O'MALLEY: Susan O'Malley.
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          2                 MS. BOLANOS: And organization.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: You may be

          4  dismissed.

          5                 DR. O'MALLEY: No, no, no. I'm Susan

          6  O'Malley. I'm the new faculty trustee, and I'm head

          7  of the Faculty Senate at City University of New

          8  York.

          9                 I come from York College

         10  commencement. The traffic was wild. I did my little

         11  speech then I ran off the platform, apologized to

         12  the students, so I could be here to say I think what

         13  you're doing is superb and I am so glad.

         14                 I was going to tell you things that

         15  you already know, like how much it cost. I was going

         16  to tell you a couple little stories from students

         17  who so desperately need this change. But I don't

         18  need to do all of that if you've passed it.

         19                 The only thing I want to say, and I

         20  don't mean this is not being grateful, because I am

         21  so grateful, I wish the bill could be broadened

         22  further, and I know this is probably impossible.

         23                 I'm tenured at Kings Borough

         24  Community College, but I also teach at City

         25  College's Center for Worker Education, and there are
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          2  many students there who have received their high

          3  school diplomas from other countries, and they're

          4  struggling with immigration and they're trying hard

          5  to get documented, but they, too, would like a

          6  college education. Many have been in the United

          7  States for many, many years, and $6,800 yearly

          8  tuition is simply too expensive for most immigrants

          9  to pay.

         10                 Perhaps these students could also be

         11  included in the bill. I know that's probably

         12  impossible, but maybe there's some way some day we

         13  could broaden it. Okay?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Well, thank you

         15  very much.

         16                 DR. O'MALLEY: Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: And I appreciate

         18  that information, and your recommendation is to say

         19  that an immigrant student that has a high school

         20  diploma from the state, this state, or any country,

         21  should be included in this kind of consideration?

         22                 DR. O'MALLEY: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Well, thank you

         24  very much.

         25                 DR. O'MALLEY: Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: We'll definitely

          3  consider that.

          4                 DR. O'MALLEY: Okay.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: And appreciate

          6  bringing that to our attention.

          7                 DR. O'MALLEY: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Thank you.

          9                 There are no further testimony. We

         10  want to thank you for coming out, and we thank you

         11  for participating in this hearing. This hearing is

         12  adjourned.

         13                 (Hearing concluded at 11:20 a.m.)
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